

S.J. Sharman

**CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY** 

To: The Chair and Members of the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

(see below)

**SERVICE HEADQUARTERS** 

THE KNOWLE

**CLYST ST GEORGE** 

EXETER DEVON EX3 0NW

Your ref : Date : 11 December 2024 Telephone : 01392 872200 Our ref : DSFRA/SJS/S Please ask for : Samantha Sharman Fax : 01392 872300

Website: www.dsfire.gov.uk Email: ssharman@dsfire.gov.uk Direct Telephone: 01392 872393

## **DEVON & SOMERSET FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY**

#### Thursday, 19th December, 2024

A meeting of the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority will be held on the above date, <u>commencing at 2.00 pm in The Committee Rooms, Somerset House, Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Clyst St George, Exeter</u> to consider the following matters.

S.J. Sharman Clerk to the Authority

# **SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA NO.1**

# PLEASE REFER TO THE NOTES AT THE END OF THE AGENDA LISTING SHEETS

d Community Safety Committee (Pages 1 - 4)

The Chair of the Committee, Councillor Hendy, to **MOVE** the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2024. *TO FOLLOW*.

**RECOMMENDATION** that the Minutes be adopted in accordance with Standing Orders.

www.dsfire.gov.uk Acting to Protect & Save

# MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

#### Membership:-

Councillors Atkinson, Best, Biederman (Vice-Chair), Brazil, Carter, Chesterton, Clayton, Coles (Chair), Cook-Woodman, Fellows, Gilmour, Hendy, Kendall, Kerley, Lugger, Randall-Johnson, Peart, Power, Prowse, Radford, Roome, Sellis, Sproston, Sully and Trail BEM

#### **NOTES**

## 1. Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this agenda should contact the person listed in the "Please ask for" section at the top of this agenda.

#### 2. Reporting of Meetings

Any person attending a meeting may report (film, photograph or make an audio recording) on any part of the meeting which is open to the public – unless there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chair - and use any communication method, including the internet and social media (Facebook, Twitter etc.), to publish, post or otherwise share the report. The Authority accepts no liability for the content or accuracy of any such report, which should not be construed as representing the official, Authority record of the meeting. Similarly, any views expressed in such reports should not be interpreted as representing the views of the Authority.

Flash photography is not permitted and any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

# 3. Declarations of Interests at meetings (Authority Members only)

If you are present at a meeting and you are aware that you have either a disclosable pecuniary interest, personal interest or non-registerable interest in any matter being considered or to be considered at the meeting then, unless you have a current and relevant dispensation in relation to the matter, you must:

- (i) disclose at that meeting, by no later than commencement of consideration of the item in which you have the interest or, if later, the time at which the interest becomes apparent to you, the existence of and for anything other than a "sensitive" interest the nature of that interest; and then
- (ii) withdraw from the room or chamber during consideration of the item in which you have the relevant interest.

If the interest is sensitive (as agreed with the Monitoring Officer), you need not disclose the nature of the interest but merely that you have an interest of a sensitive nature. You must still follow (i) and (ii) above.

Where a dispensation has been granted to you either by the Authority or its Monitoring Officer in relation to any relevant interest, then you must act in accordance with any terms and conditions associated with that dispensation.

Where you declare at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary or personal interest that you have not previously included in your Register of Interests then you must, within 28 days of the date of the meeting at which the declaration was made, ensure that your Register is updated to include details of the interest so declared.

# **NOTES (Continued)**

#### 4. Part 2 Reports

Members are reminded that any Part 2 reports as circulated with the agenda for this meeting contain exempt information and should therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s). Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to return them to the Committee Secretary at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

## 5. Substitute Members (Committee Meetings only)

Members are reminded that, in accordance with Standing Orders, the Clerk (or his representative) must be advised of any substitution prior to the start of the meeting. Members are also reminded that substitutions are not permitted for full Authority meetings.

# 6. Other Attendance at Committees )

Any Authority Member wishing to attend, in accordance with Standing Orders, a meeting of a Committee of which they are not a Member should contact the Democratic Services Officer (see "please ask for" on the front page of this agenda) in advance of the meeting.

# Agenda Item 7d

#### **COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE**

(Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority)

13 December 2024

#### Present:

Councillors Hendy (Chair), Brazil, Fellows, Chesterton, Kerley and Radford

#### **Apologies:**

Councillor Best

## \* CSC/24/7 Minutes

**RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting held on the 4 September 2024 be signed as a correct record.

## \* CSC/24/8 Strategic Priority 1 and 2 Performance Measures

Prior to consideration of the performance report as below, the Director of Service Delivery advised the Committee of a recent fire death which had taken place on Friday 29<sup>th</sup> November 2024. Area Manager Mike Porter provided a succinct overview of the incident which had taken place, advising that this matter was subject to investigation and thus could not be reported upon in depth at this point. Further information would be provided to the Committee as part of the next performance report for quarter 3 of 2024-25.

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/24/15) to which was appended a performance monitoring report for the second quarter of the current (2024-25) financial year against those Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) falling within the remit of this Committee for scrutiny purposes and aligned to Authority-approved Strategic Priorities 1 and 2.

In summary, the report noted the KPI performance as:

	Succeeding (ü)	Near target  (•)	Requires improvement (û)
Priority 1	15 (+1)	4 (-)	1 (-1)
Priority 2	1 (-)	5 (-)	2 (-)

The KPIs with a status of "needs improvement" were:

- KPI 1.8. Number of persons requiring hospital treatment due to a non-domestic premises fire;
- KPI 2.2. Percentage of level four operational risk sites in date for revalidation; and

 KPI 2.8. Percentage availability of risk dependant pumping appliances.

The report provided a detailed exception report for the three KPIs requiring improvement, explaining the reasons for the exceptions and measures to remediate the performance as follows:

- In terms of KPI 1.8, the number of persons requiring hospital treatment due to a non-domestic premises fire, against a target of 9, was 14. The report noted a 25% increase above the five-year average, however, with performance remained the same as the previous year and the monitoring of this measure would be continued.
- In terms of KPI 2.2, percentage of level four operational risk sites in date for revalidation, the Service had achieved a performance of 85.7% against the target of 96%. As considered at the previous Committee, the measure had been in exception due to all plans having been set with the same revalidation date. The Committee was advised that the reporting had subsequently been updated and as at the 31 October 2024, all level four risk sites were in date for revalidation.
- KPI 2.8, relating to percentage availability of risk dependant pumping appliances reported an actual of 56.8% against a target of 85%. The reported noted the measure had consistently been in exception. Further narrative was provided to the Committee within report CSC/24/26.

The Committee queried KPI 1.18, number of false alarms due to apparatus attended in dwellings. The Director of Service Delivery advised that some of the premises reported would be considered sheltered, self-contained accommodation and therefore, the Service would expect to see multiple alarms within these areas resulting in an increased figure. The Service would continue to take proactive action to review the measure.

In response to a question raised by the Clerk to the Authority in respect of future areas for scrutiny of performance, the Committee requested that a report detailing the position in respect of Emergency Response Standards be submitted to the next meeting.

#### RESOLVED

- (a). That a report on Emergency Response Standards be submitted to the next meeting; and
- (b). That, subject to (a) above, the report be noted.

## \* CSC/24/9 Risk Dependant Availability Performance and Impact Report

The Committee received for information a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/24/16) outlining the Service's performance on risk dependant availability from October 2023 to September 2024.

The Committee noted the eleven Risk Dependant Availability (RDA) appliances had been second pumps introduced between October 2020 and May 2022, they had been introduced and identified based on area risk, demand, and availability. The appliances were required to be available during night time hours whereby life-risk in dwelling fires is deemed to be greatest, the reporting therefore reflected these hours.

There was a variance of performance across the appliances with higher performance at Okehampton, Honiton and Tiverton, and lower performance at Ilfracombe, Williton and Dartmouth. Due to the assessed prevalent risks in the areas of the lower performing stations, these had not been considered areas of concerns.

The Service's future fire cover review would provide a holistic analysis of the provision of operational resources and would be used to determine future resourcing needs, noting of the 112 Service appliances 99 were on-call. The Committee noted the significant amount of work undertaken on the fire cover review, and that an update would be provided to the Fire & Rescue Authority informally at Members' Forum in January 2025.

The Committee had queried whether a correlation had been identified between operational use and availability. The Service was of the view that the on-call stations were reflective of the demographic of the communities they were located in and, that this could inhibit the ability to recruit as a result.

#### \* CSC/24/10 Prevention Road Safety Activity

The Committee received for information a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/24/17) detailing the Service's Community Risk Road Safety Team activity both locally, regionally and nationally. The Service's Road Safety and Community Risk Manager presented the report to the Committee.

The Service recognised the changes in public behaviour, attitudes and vehicle technology which had impacted national response to Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs).

The Service attended in the region of 850 road traffic collisions (RTCs) per year, which represented only a small proportion of collisions which had taken place as a significant additional number of incidents did not require Service response. Of these attended incidents, the Service attended on average 50 fatalities a year, noting a higher proportion in Devon compared to Somerset. The Service had cited the higher number of rural roads had presented the higher risk. Attention was drawn to paragraph 2.5 of the report which highlighted the false assumption that many RTCs in the Service area were due to the influx of tourism, whereas data would suggest this was not the case.

The Committee made enquiries into the availability of national funding, having noted the funding received through the Vision Zero South West (VZSW) partnership of £150,000. The Service advised that nationally, though the drive to support had been present, monetary funding was not yet available, however, the Service was optimistic that the lobbying activity of VZSW at governmental level may spark change.

The Committee moted the impact of reduced budgets for highways within local government and the potential this could have on road safety. There was a need to focus on 'safe systems' which would require a more holistic overview of incidents with a view to including a review of the road networks, vehicle technology and human behaviour. This would allow the Service to better understand areas of correlation with incidents.

The Committee further noted concerns surrounding RTCs occurring as result of drivers under the influence of alcohol and drugs. Alcohol tended to be an issue with higher age groups whereas drugs was a matter generally relating to younger people and was an area which the Police were addressing. For the Service, alcohol, drugs, inappropriate speed and tiredness remained key areas of concern.

The Service invited the Committee to attend a scheduled Learn2Live event, recognising the profound impact the events had on attendees. The events took place in Devon and Somerset, the dates of which would be shared by the Clerk in due course.

The Committee acknowledged and congratulated the work of the team for their deserved success and recognition through national awards.

\*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.59 am